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The Sutter-Meyer House at 6826 Chamberlain Court first betrays its
age by its placement in relation to the street: not facing it but at
right angles. It consists of a three-bay, one-and-a-half-story
gable-roofed main block with a one-story brick wing to the rear and a
later two=car brick garage attached to the northwest cornexr. The brick of
the older portion is laid in common bond, while the garage has stretcher
bond, but these differences are obscured by white paint, as are the
radlating stretchers cver the segmental-arched windows and the diamond-
shaped ends of the tle rods.

Across the east front of the main block is a verandah, whose roof is
supported by curved slat-like brackets and square posts on square pedestals,
The floor of the verandah is now concrete. The front door has a transom,
while the windows are two~over—two, double-hung. Twin chimneys pierce the
rear slope of the malin roof; they have elaborately corbelled tops. The
rear wing has a narrow ashestos-shingled enclosed porch along its south
side, Similar shingles can be seen on the gable end of the garage, which
faces the street.

Original woodwork remalns throughout the interior, including shaped
lintels over doors and windows, and a fireplace in the south room. The
staircase descends away from the front door and turns into the north room;
1t once had a second flight into the kitchen. Bisement stalrs descend
from the back porch, which was enclosed in 1951, At that time a bathroon
was installed at one end of the porch but at the level of and opening
onto the stair landing., The kitchen has been modernized.

The lot on which the house now sits, the remnant of 8.33 acres,
measures 88 feet by 150 feet. It has several old trees and many large
shrubs, Although the next lot to the east and a larger stretch of land
to the south (fronting Olive Street Road) are no longer in the same
ownership, they have not yet been builti on, thus preserving something
of the original rural setting.

Foot 2]

1. Interview with present owner, June, 1980,
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| STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

! The Sutter-Meyer Housi i1s significant as the oldest known residence in
University City, Missouri. It is also the last building to recall the settlement
known as Sutter, Missouri. The land on which the Sutter-Meyer House rests was
part of the farm of John Sutter, which was bounded by the present clty streets
of Sutter, Etzel, and Pennsylvania Avenues and Olive Street Road. Sutter (1815-
1867) had come from Germany with his father, also John Sutter (1793-1859) and
family in 1831.“ He married Ursula Anselm in 1839 and in 1850 built "The
Homestead" just off Sutter Avenue, which connected the house with Cook Avenue
{now Page) to the north and the Olive Plank Road to the south. Sutter was a
dairyman in partnership with Luclen Dutilhe Cabanne (1814-1875), a descendant

of Pierre Laclede, the founder of St. Louis. Cabanne's farm was in what is now
the West End of St. Louis, and the firm also had property in Madison County,
Illinois. Frgm their depot in downtown St. Louls they supplied scme of the
major hotels, _

-

John and Ursula Sutter had eleven children, of whom only five reached
maturity., John (1840-1911). the eldest of these, became a contractor in stone
. guarrying and a road overseer; he was the grandfather of Orval C. Sutter (b. 1901),

. University City Alderman, and Dr. Richard A. Sutter (b. 1909), whose family has
also been active in University City affairs. Ursula Sutter died in 1856 giving
birth to the last of these children, and the following year John married
Catherine Killian Hartnagel, a widow with two children. They had five more
children, of whom the youngest, Otto (1863-1937), became a,well-~known surgeon
and superintendant of the City Hospital from 1895 to 1899. When John Sutter
died in 1867 only John and Willlam (b, 1846) had reached their majority. In
& 1871, as part of the settlement of his estate, John Sutter's executors
- subdivided the farm, giving the widow and each of the children a portion.5

‘ William Sutter received 8.33 acres bounded on the east by Ferguson Avenue, the
north by Bartmer Avemue, and the south by Clive Street Zoad. As this was
somevwhat smaller than some of the other plots, he was also,given a city lot
on the south slde of Cherckee Street just west of Compton.

William Sutter had been married on September 8, 186G to Julia Broking,
and it 1s possible that the present house was built at that time, before
he had acquired separate tltle to the property. It 1s more likely,however,
that it was built in 1873, when William and Julia mortgaged the, property to
his stepmother's trustees, making repayment the following year.? Then on
July 5, 1875, they sold the whole tract, "Lot nugber 6 in the subdivision of
John Sutter's estate" to Roman Meyex for $7, 500,

iz vl
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Based on stylistic attributes alone, the house could have been bullt at
any time in the latter part of the nineteenth century. It has the front
verandah of the French colonial tradition, raised in height to the proportions
of the Greek Revival. Much of the woodwork inside is Greek Revival vernacular,
but the square bracketed porch posts and the segmental-arched window openings
belong to the vernacular of the Victorian era. Our best evidence that the
house was built prior to 1875 is the tradition in the Meyer family that it was
built by William Sutter.

Roman Meyer, born 184?f;was a German immigrant who was listed in city
directories of the time as a gardener, that is, ruck farmexr. Two weeks
after he bought this land he married Maria Jocks. She 1s said to have been
married previocusly to another Meyer, and in Homan Meyer's wi}i he gave a
bequest of five hundred dollars to his stepson Altert Meyer. Roman and
Maria had three childrens Frederick Roman (d, 1963}, Catherine (wife of Herman
L. Lammering, d. 1941), and Louisa (wife of Joseph R. Ritter)., After the death
of his first wife, Roman Meyer married Barbara Ebper (b. 186l), by whom he had
another son and three daughters. He died in 1913 leaving "my real estate
at the North West corner of Olive Street and Ferguson Avenue" to his wifes; she
in turn bequeathed it to her four children in 1936. Son Edward E. Meyer, who
had beenlgorn in the house in 1883, continued to reside there until his death
in 1969. The continuous ownership of the property by the Meyer family for
nearly a century can be thanked for the preservation of the house,

The neighborhood around the Sutter-Meyer House has gradually evolved from
rural to suburban over the past century. John Sutter's dairy tusiness had been
facilitated by,phe incorporation of the Central Plank Road (now 0live Street
Road) in 1851, and by the sixties a small community had grown up in thf5
vicinity of Sutter's farm. 3By 1887 a Sutter post office was establisheqd,
and Sutter was still "a location on Olive Streig Road in Central Township,
seven miles from St. Louls City Hall" in 1911. By 1904, however, Edwaxrd G.
Lewis had launched his new suburb, Unlversity Heights, and the post office was
moved closer to the developments he was promoting on Delmar Boulevard to the
south. In 1906, the former Sutter lands as far north as Bartmia were included
in lewls's newly incorporated municipality of University City.

By that time, houses fairly well dotted the Sutter Subdivision, but the
Meyer famlly continued thelr gardening; even in his later years Edward Meyer
kept an extensive flower garden between Eés house and Olive Street Road, one
that was especlally noted for its roses, In 1951 most of the undeveloggd
part of Lot 6 of the Sutter Estate was replatted as Keating Subdivision;
Chamberlain Avenue was extended west to form a cul-de-sac, and the address
of the old house changed from 6801 Olive Street Road (later 6805) to 6826
Chamberlain Court.

A ap————
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Edward Meyer's widow Bertha sold the old family prgBerty in 1970, and it

changed hands eight times in the following eight years. It is hoped that
this nomination will help to assure the old house's preservation as a reminder
of the early history of the area.
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Photo Log:

Name of Property:  Sutter-Myer House

City or Vicinity: University City

County: St. Louis County State: MO
Photographer: Esley Hamilton

Date

Photographed: June 1980

Description of Photograph(s) and number, include description of view indicating direction of camera:

1 of 2. View of house from E.
2 of 2. View of house from NE.











